
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION III

1650 Arc h Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

Dear Mr. Coyne:

VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL

July 1,2010

Mr. John C. Coyne
Director of Environmental Health and Safety
Hydrocarbon Recovery Services, Inc. and
International Petroleum Corporation d/b/a FCC Environmental
523 N. Sam Houston Parkway East, Suite 400
Houston, TX 77060

RE: Administrative Complaint Alleging aViolation of Sedion 311(b)(3) of the
Clean Water Act by the International Paper Corporation d/b/a FCC
Environmental; Docket Number CWA-03-2010-0327

i

I
Enclosed is an Administrative Complaint which the United States Environmental

Protection Agency ("EPA") is issuing to the Internatiorial Paper Corporation d/b/a FCC
Environmental (hereafter referred to as "Respondent") ~oncerning a violation of Section
311(b)(3) of the Clean Water Act, as amended, ("CWA"), 33 U.S.C. §1321(b)(3). The violation

,

is a result of a June 2, 2008 discharge of an estimated thirty (30) barrels of oil from a tanker truck
traveling un Pennsylvania State Highway Route 41 in Avondale, Chester County Pennsylvania

I
This Administrative Complaint is issued pursuant to Section 311 (b)(6)(B)(i) of the CW 1\,

33 U.S.c. §1321 (b)(6)(B)(i), and proposes a Class I periaIty of $11,000.00 against the
Respondent. Generally, Class 1penalties may not exceed $11,000 per violation, with a $32,50(1
maximum for each assessed penalty. This proposed penalty does not constitute a demand as
defined in the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. §24l2.

I
This Administrative Complaint is being issued in accordance with the "Consolidated

Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment Civil Penalties, Issuance of
Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation, Tennination or Suspension of
Permits," 64 Fed. Reg. 40138 (July 23,1999),40 C.F.R'. Part 22 ("Consolidated Rules"). You
should carefully read the Consolidated Rules and the Administrative Complaint to detennine
your available response alternatives. For your conveniehce, a copy of the proposed Consolidated
Rules has been enclosed with the Administrative Complaint.

\

I



RESPONSE TO THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT

The Respondent may resolve this matter by pa~ing the specific penalty proposed in th'l
Complaint. Pursuant to the Settlement provisions oftre Complaint (Section VI), ifthe
Respondent pays the specific penalty proposed in the Complaint within thirty (30) days of

,

receiving the Complaint, then, pursuant to the Consolidated Rules, it need not liIe a written
answer to the Complaint. I

However, if your company wishes to contest any material fact upon which the Complaint
is based, contend that the proposed penalty is inappropriate, assert any defense, or contend that
you are entitled to judgment as a matter of law, you must tile a written answer (one original and

, .

one copy) with the Regional Hearing Clerk within thiJ1Y (30) days of service of the .
Administrative Complaint. The Hearing Clerk's maili'ng address may be found within the
Administrative Complaint. If the Respondent fails to ~ubmit a timely response to the !

,

Administrative Complaint it may be found in default. ence found in default you will be deemed
to have admitted all factual allegations asserted in the complaint and have waived your right to a

,

hearing on such factual allegations. In addition, in the 'event that the Respondent believes that
the proposed penalty will create an undue tinancial haidship on its business and are entitled to'an
"ability to pay settlement" for less than the proposed pbnalty, the Respondent will be required to
submit tinancial information related to the business. I~ the Respondent believes it is entitled to
an ability-to-pay settlement, please contact EPA immediately regarding the documentation EP.\
will need to consider such a claim. \ i

Your company may qualiJY as a "small business" under the Small Business Regulatory~

Enforcement and Fairness Act ("SBREFA'} Please sde the Small Business Information I
enclosure accompanying this letter. This enclosure prJ~ides information on contacting the I
SARFFA Ombudsman to comment on federal enforcement and compliance activities and also I,

provides information on compliance assistance. As noted in the enclosure, any decision to I
participate in such a program or to seek compliance ass~istance does not relieve you ofyour !
obligation to respond in a timely manner to an EPA req'uest or other enforcement action, create'
any new rights or defenses under law and will not affect EPA's decision to pursue this !
enforcement action. To preserve your legal rights. you bust comply with all rules governing t~:e
administrative enforcement process. The Ombudsman lmd fairness boards do not participate ir:
the resolution of EPA's enforcement action.

In addition, your company may be required to disclose to the Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC") the existence of certain administr~tive or judicial proceedings taken r

against your company under Federal, State or local environmental laws. Please see the enclosed
"Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental I
Legal Proceedings" for more information about this reqhirement and to aid you in determining
whether your company is subject to it. I

2
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I

EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS

Please be advised that Section 22.8 of the Conkolidated Rules prohibits any ex parte
discussion of the merits of the proceeding between any interested party outside of the EPA or any
EPA staff member who perfonns a prosecutorial or inhstigative function in this proceeding (br
any factually related proceeding) and the EPA Admini1strator, the members of the Environrnerital
Appeals Board, the EPA Region III Regional Adminis~rator, the Regional Judicial Officer, or by
other person who is likely to advise these otlicials in the decision on the case.

, I

The Respondent has the right to retain and be fppresented by an attorney at any stage of
the proceedings, including any infonnal discussions wIth EPA. You, or your attorney, shouldI
contact Yvette Hamilton-Taylor, Senior Assistant Regional Counsel, at (215) 814-2636, at yom
earliest convenience to discuss the matters herein.

Sincerely,

Enclosures

I

Ka hryn Hodgkiss
Acting Dil-ector, Hazardous Site Cleanup Division

cc: Yvette Hamilton-Taylor (3RC43)
Paula J. Curtin (3HS61)
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Respondent,

In The Matter of:

505 South Market Street!
Wilmington, DE 19801

International Petroleum
Corporation of Delaware
d/b/a FCC Environmental

..
I
!.
I

I

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
,

REGIONIr

ADMINI,STRATIVE COMPLAINT
AND OprORTUNITY TO REQUEST

IIEAjG AND CONFERENCE

Proceedidg to Assess Class I
Civil Pen~lties Under Section
311 of th9 Clean Water Act, as
amended'133 U.S.c. § 1321.

Docket No. CWA-03-2010-0327
I

I

I. STATUTORY AUTHORITY

, I

I. This Administrative Complaint and Opportuhity to Request Hearing and Conferencf.

("Complaint") is issued un~er the authority vested in thl Administrator of the U.S.
. I

I

Environmental Protection ~gency ("EPA") by Section rII (b)(6)(B) of the Clean Water Act, as

amended, ("CWA"), 33 U.S.C. § 1321(b)(6)(B). The Administrator has delegated this authOrit!y
! I
. !

to the Regional Administrator of EPA, Region Ill, by qelegation No.2-51 who in tum has
, I

delegated it to the Directorrthe Region's Hazardous Sllite Cleanup Division ("Complainant") by

Delegation No.2-51. !

2. EPA h" d"=m'd "" CI", 1p'Mh, pro ~di"g" roc ,;ol,tio"" ofS~ti""! !

311 (b)(3), 33 U.S.C. § 1321(b)(3), and regulations issuJd under Section 3I1G). 33 U.S.C.



§ 1321 (j), and other provis~ons of the CWA. shall be clnducted in accordance with the
, I

"Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties,

Issuance of Compliance or;Corrective Action Orders ld the Revocation, Termination or
i I

Suspension of Permits" ("Consolidated Rules"). 40 C.F .R. Part 22.

3. Therefore, purs~ant to Section 31 I(b)(6) ofte CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(b)(6), and in

I

accordance with the Consolidated Rules, Complainant hereby requests that the Regional

Administrator assess civil Jenalties against the InternJonal Petroleum Corporation of Delaware,

dJ~"; FCC En,;ro=ffi'. ~hcro;_""R~PO"'ffi'" l' "IPC'1, f" ili, d;~""go of oU ""001
upon the navigable waters of the United States or adjoihing shorelines in a quantity that has bel~n

. I

determined may be harmful, in violation of Section 31 ~(b)(3) ofthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. §
,

1321 (b)(3). I

4. Forpurposesof~ection311(b)(3)OftheCIA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(b)(3), discharges(!lf

oil into or upon the navigable waters of the United States in such quantities that have been

! I
determined may be harmful to the public health or welfare or environment of the United States

!

are defined in 40 C.F,R, § 1,10.3 to include discharges 1f oil that cause a film or a sheen upon a
i ,

discoloration of the surface of a water or an adjoining shoreline or cause a sludge or emulsion tf
i I

be deposited beneath the surface of a water or upon an 4djoining shoreline.

5. "Oil" is defined at Section 311(a)(l), 33 U.S.C. § 1321 (a)(I), for purposes of Section
i

311(b)(3) of the CWA, to indude anykind of oil in any form, including petroleum, fuel oil,

i

sludge, oil refuse and oil mixed with wastes other than dredged spoil.
i I

6. Section 31 I(a)(2) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § Ibl(a)(2), defines "discharge" to indud
• I

any spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, or dulnping other than federally permitted

discharges pursuant to a pe~it under Section 402 ofth1 CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342.

I

I
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I

! I

7. For purposes of ~ection 311(b)(3) of the cJA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(b)(3), "navigable

waters" is defined by 40 C.~.R. § 112.2, to include, am10ng other things, tributaries to waters Hat

Idb d "'d 'li . Icou e use lor m ustna purposes or mterstate commerce.
i ii

8. For purposes of Tection 311(b)(3) of the C,A, 33 U.S.C. § 132 I(b)(3), "sheen" is

defined by 40 C.F.R. § 110, I as an iridescent appearan6e on the surface of water.
" I

9. Section 311G)(l)(C) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1321G)(l)(C), provides that the

President shall issue regulations "establishing procedures, methods, and equipment and other

requirements for equipment to prevent discharges of oJ and hazardous substances from vessel5

and from onshore facilities ~nd offshore facilities, and t6 contain such discharges ...."

: I

:

II. THE RESPONDENT

10. Respondent is a Delaware corporation that lis headquartered at 505 S. Market Stre

Wilmington, Delaware 1980 I and is registered to do business in the State of Delaware.
. " I

II. Respondent is the owner of an onshore Facility within the meaning of Section

". I31 I(a)(6) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. §1321(a)(6), and 40 GFR §112.2, which is a tanker truck

("Facility") that was located on Pennsylvania State HiJway Route 41 in Avondale, Chester

County, Pennsylvania on or about June 2, 2008.

I

III. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS
" I

12. The allegations in Paragraphs I through Illare incorporated by reference as if fully

set forth herein.

13. The Respondent is a person within the mejing of Section 311 (a)(7) of the CWA,

33 U.S.c. §1321(a)(7), and 40 C.F.R. §112.2. I

I 3



I

, I

14. The Respondent's Facility is an onshore FrCility within the meaning of Section

311(a)(l0) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1321(a)(l0) and 4@ C.F.R. §112.2.

15. On or about June 2,2008, a tanker truck (tle "Facility") that is owned and operat,.d

by Respondent discharged ~pproximatelY 400 gallons lfNo. 5 fuel oil onto Pennsylvania StaJ

Highway Route 41 in Avo~dale, Chester County, pennlSYIVania. The oil was then discharged
i I

through a nearby storm drain into Trout Run, which fldws into White Clay Creek, which in tun

flows into the Christiana R\ver, a navigable waterway. The oil that entered Trout Run caused l
sheen on the surface of Trout Run. As a result ofthis discharge, an estimated thirty (30) gallolls

of0;1 ,",,,cd 1roo' R=

16. Trout Run is a navigable water of the United States as defined in Section 502(7) c

the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §1362(7), and 40 C.F.R. §112.2 bLause it is a tributary of White Clay

Creek.

17. White Clay Creek is a navigable water of tre United States as defined in Section

502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. §1362(7), and 40 C.F.R. §112.2 because it is a tributary of the

i
Christiana River. i

18. White Clay Creek has received a special ddsignation by the United States Congres;~
i

pursuant to the National Wild and Scenic River Act, 16 U.S.c. §1271 et~. as an

environmentally sensitive iatershed. I

19. The Christiana ~iver is a navigable water d1fthe United States within the meaning, f

I ,

Section 502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §1362(7), and 4@ C.F.R. §112.2.

I I'
I
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COUNT I - ILLEGAL DISGHARGE OF OIL
\ INTO TROUT RUN

I l '
20. Respondent's June 2, 2008, discharge of 011 from its Facility caused a sheen upon r

discoloration of the surfacj of Trout Run and, therefoJ was in a quantity that has been
i I.

determined may be harmful under 40 C.F.R. §II0.3, which implements Sections 311(b)(3) anc

I I·
(b)(4) of the CWA. II I '

21. Respondent's June 2, 2008, discharge of oil from its Facility into or upon Trout RI

I I.
occurred in a quantity that has been determined may b~ harmful under 40 CFR §II 0.3 and

I .

Sections 311(b)(3) and (b)(4) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. §1321(b)(3) and (b)(4), and violated
I .

Section 311(b)(3) of the CWA because it caused a film or sheen upon or discoloration of the

'"cfu,"fTrorn R~. \'

IV. PROPOSED pJNALTV

I

22. The allegations ,In Paragraphs 12 through 21 are incorporated by reference as iffull

set forth herein.

23. Based on the foregoing allegations. and pursuant to the authority of Section

31 I (b)(6)(B)(i) of the cwJ, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(b)(6)(B~(i), the Complainant proposes that the

Regional Administrator or ~iS designee issue a Final or~er assessing an administrative penalty

'I 'I'against the Respondent in the amount of $11 ,000.00. .
i :

24. The proposed p6naJty was determined after laking into account the factors identifie'
. I

" I

at Section 311(b)(8) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §1321(b)(8D. These factors include: the seriousnes

of the violations; the econolic benefit to the violator reLlting from the violations; the degree a

culpability involved; any ot~er penalty for the same inCi!dent; any history of prior violations; th(

nature, extent, and degree 0; success of any efforts of thb violator to minimize or mitigate the

II .

I

I

5



Lydia Guy
Regional HearinglClerk (3RCOO) .
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Region III I ·

1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA i 91 03-2029 I

The Respondent must also provide a copy of its AnswJ to the attorney r~presenting EPA in th
I I

matter at the following add~ess: I

I .

effects of the discharge; the economic impact of the pehaltY on the violator; and any other

matters as justice may reqUiire. This proposed penalty 10es not constitute a demand as that te
I I i

is defined in the Equal Acc~ss to Justice Act, 28 u.s.el
l

§ 2412. The pr~posed penalty may be
I •

adjusted if Respondent establishes bona fide issues of ability to payor other defenses relevant 0
I '
I .

the appropriate amount of the proposed penalty.

I

I,

i

V. ANSWER TO THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT AND
OPPORTUNITY TO REOUEST A HEARING
Ii.

25. Pursuant to Sec~ion 31 I(b)(6)(B) of the CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1321(b)(6)(B), and

Section 22.l5(c) of the Co+olidated Rules, the ResPo~dent may request a hearing. The

procedures for the hearing, tf one is held, are set out in rhe Consolidated I Rules.

26. If the Respond~nt contests any material facl upon which the Complaint is based;

contends that the proposed fenaltieS are inappropriate; rr contends that iit is entitled to judgme t

as a matter of law; Respondent shall file an original and one copy of a written answer to the

Complaint ("Answer") witJ the Regional Hearing cleJ and shall serve copies of its Answers on

all other parties. Any Ansler to the Complaint must bi filed within thirty (30) days after serv e

f h· Ad .. . C II' .hi'·otIS mllllstrahve omp amt WIt :

I

I
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Yvette Hamilton-Taylor
Senior Assistant Regional Counsel (3RC43)
U.S. Environmental Protjdction AgenCY'.
Region III . ;
1650 Arch Street ,
Philadelphia, PA 19103-029 ;
(215) 814-2636 I '

27. The Respondent's Answer(s) shall clearly ld directly admit, deny or explain each f

1 I

the factual allegations contained in the Administrative G:omplaint with regard to which

I •

Respondent has knowledge. Where Respondent has no knowledge of a partIcular factual
I

:

allegation, the Respondent shall so state and the allegation shall be deemed denied. Fai lure to

admit, deny, or explain any Imaterial factual allegation Jontained in the Complaint constitutes a,
1 I;

admission of the allegation.! Respondent's Answer shall also state (l) the circumstances or

arguments that are alleged tp constitute the grounds of defense; (2) the facts that Respondent
I
I

disputes; (3) the basis for opposing any proposed relief; and (4) whether a hearing is requested.
I
,

28. If Respondent fails to submit an Answer wi hin thirty (30) days of receipt of this

Administrative Complaint, ind the case is not otherwiJ disposed of through settlement,
I I.

Respondent may be found in default. For purposes of this action, default constitutes an

admission of all facts alleg~d in the Administrative colplaint and a waiver of the right to a
,

I

hearing to contest such fact~al allegations.

I

I

I

VI. SETTLEMENT AND OUICK RESOLUTION

I 1

29. In accordance with Section 22.18(a) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice, the
i I

Respondent may resolve this proceeding at any time by either: (1) paying the full penalty
I ,

I

described in Paragraph 23 a~ove, or (2) filing a written Ftatement with the Regional Hearing

I I"'Clerk at the address provided above agreeing to pay, and subsequently paying within sixty (60

7



days of Respondent's receip of this Complaint, the full penalty proposed in Paragraph 23. If

Respondent pays or agrees to pay within sixty (60) days the specific penalty proposed in this

Complaint within thirty (30; days of receiving this coJplaint, then, pursuant to the Consolidat d
!

Rules of Practice, no Answer need be filed.

I

30. If Respondent wishes to resolve this proceeding by paying the penalty proposed in
I I.

this Complaint instead of filing an Answer, but needs additional time to pay the penalty, pursu t
i I

to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(a)(2), Respondent may file a written statement with the Regional Hearing

Clerk within thirty (30) day~ after receiving this comPILnt, stating that Respondent agrees to
, I

pay the proposed penalty in accordance with 40 C.F.R. §22.18(a)(l). Such written statement
! I

need not contain any response to, or admission of, the allegations in the Complaint. Such

statement shall be filed with
l

the Regional Hearing cleJ (3RCOO), U.S. EPA, Region Ill, 1650

Arch Street, Philadelphia, P~nnsYlvania 19103-2029, Jd a copy shall be provided to Ms. Yve
,

Hamilton-Taylor (3RC43), Senior Assistant Regional C unsel, at the address below. Within

sixty (60) days of receiving the Complaint, Respondent shall pay the full amount of the propos

penalty in accordance with the instructions provided in Paragraphs 33 through 36, below.

3 l. Failure to make such payment within 60 daJs ofreceipt of the Complaint may
i

subject the Respondent to default pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.17.

32. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22. I8(a)(3 ), upon receipt of payment in full, the
,

Regional Judicial Officer orRegional Administrator sh~ll issue a Final Order. Payment by

Respondent shall constitute ~ waiver of Respondent's rikht to contest the allegations contained n

this Complaint and to appea: the final order. I

33. Payment shall b~ made by a cashier's or ceJified check, or by an electronic funds

transfer ("EFT"). If paying ~y check, the Respondent Jall submit a cashier's or certified chec

8



payable to "Environmental Protection Agency," and bearing the notation "OSLTF - 311." 1ft e
I I·

Respondent sends payment by the U.S. Postal Service, the payment shall be addressed to:

: U.S. Environmental protLtion Agency
Fines and Penalties I

Cincinnati Finance Centet
• P.O. Box 979077 I .

I St. LOUIS, MO 63197-90r .
If the Respondent sends payment by a private delivery service, the payment shall be addressed

to:

U.S. Bank
1005 Convention Plaza
Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL
St. Louis, MO 63101 I

I Attn: Natalie Pearson (31 r418-4087)

If paying by EFT, the Respondent shall make the transfer to:

i I

: Federal Reserve Bank ofNew York
ABA 021030004
Account 68010727
33 Liberty Street
New York, NY 10045

If paying by EFT, field tag 4200 of the Fedwire message shall read: (D 68010727 Environmen
: I·

Protection Agency). In the ~ase of an international tran~fer of funds, the Respondent shall use

SWIFT address FRNYUS33.
I

34. If paying through the Department of Treasury's Online Payment system, please

i I

access www.pay.gov, enter sfo 1.1 in the search field. IDpen the form and complete the require

fields and make the paymen(. Note that the type of paylent is "civil penalty," the docket

number "CWA-03-201 0-03
T
.T' should be included in thle "Court Order #or Bill #" field and 3

should be included as the Region number.
. .

I 9



35. If paying by che'ck, the Respondent shall no e on the penalty payment check the tit!

and docket number of this cise. The Respondent shall Lbmit a copy of;he check (or, in the ca e

ofan EFT transfer, a copy olfthe EFT confirmation) to tle following person:

Lydia Guy
Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO)
U.S. Environmental Protebtion Agency
Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029 I

36. The Responden must also provide a copyJits check to the ~ttomey representing
I
I
I

EPA in this matter at the following address:

Yvette Hamilton-Taylor I .

Senior Assistant Regional Counsel (3RC4~)
U.S. Environmental Protebtion Agency ,
Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2

1
°29 I

(215) 814-2636

'{II. EX PARTE COMM NICATIONS ,
I 'I

37. The following EPA offices, and the staffs tJereof, are designated as the trial stafft

I I.
represent EPA as a party in this case: the Region III OfNce of Regional Counsel; the Region II

Hazardous Site Cleanup DiJision; the Office of the EPl Assistant Admi~istrator for Solid Wa e

and Emergency Response; id the Office of the EPA Alsistant Administrator for Enforcement

and Compliance Assurance.1 Please be advised that, purl1suant to Section 22.8 of the Consolidat d
I •
I

Rules, from the date of this ~omplaint until the final Agency decision in .this case, the

Administrator, the memberJ of the Environmental APp~als Board, the Regional Administrator,

the Presiding Officer, or ani person who is likely to aJise these officials on any decision in th
I
I

proceeding, shall not have any ex parte communication about the merits of the proceeding wit
I

o



the Respondent, a representative of Respondent, or any ~erson outside E~A having an interest'
I I'

the proceeding, or with any 'EPA staff member who performs a prosecutorial or investigative

function in this proceeding La factually related procee1ing. Any communication addressed t

the Administrator, the members of the Environmental Appeals Board, th~ Regional

Administrator, or the preSidling Officer during the penJncy of the proceeding and relating to t e

merits thereof, by or on behllf of any party, shall be reJarded as argume~t made in the
I ..

proceeding, and shall be served upon all other parties.

I VIII. INFORMAL CO!'NFERENCE

38. Respondent ma~ request an informal confeJence concerning the alleged violations

I I
and the amount of the proposed penalty. The request for an informal conference does not exte d

: I,
the thirty (30) day period i1 which the Respondent mu,t submit its writt~n Answer in order to

preserve the right to a hearii~g. To request an informal iconference relati~g to this Administrati e

Complaint, Respondent should contact Ms. Yvette Harnilton-Taylor, Senior Assistant Region
I I',

Counsel, at (215) 814-2636

Signed this :Jo day OftCcC(J, 2010) . 0

I j-);,! .\
Kat n A. Hodgkiss, Acting riifeaor
Hazardouk Site Cleanup Division

I I
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/--{I'; ./( ;" /. ",t:I(/, j'.. --- '-.-j /~/'11 \~~
1'-

." Yyette Hamilton-Taylor ----
Senior As~istant Regional Counsel

L-/

Upon infonnation and belief, I certify this Adm"nistrative Complaint as a legally
!

sufficient pleading:

/] '7
Date: -'o"-7'!!Z:..L',L1/:....:."t-=---L)O,,-"t-"_, 20 I0

: 'i

OF COUNSEL: I

I

United States Environmental Protection Agency
Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029
Phone: 215-814-2636
Fax: 215-814-2604
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